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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Nature, Objectives and Strategies 

The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2021. 

Legal status 

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of conducting 
New City College (formerly Tower Hamlets College). The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of the 
Charities Act 2011. 

The College was incorporated as Tower Hamlets College on 1 January 1993. Following the merger with Hackney 
Community College on 1 August 2016 and in light of the merger with Redbridge College on 1 April 2017, the 
Corporation applied to the Department for Education for approval to change its name to New City College, to reflect 
the broader range of its activities in East London. This change of name was approved with effect from 1 February 
2017. Epping Forest College merged with New City College on the 1 August 2018 and the two Havering Colleges 
(Havering College of F&HE and Havering Sixth Form College) merged with New City College on the 1 August 2019. 

Public Benefit 

The College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and from 1 September 2013, is regulated 
by the Secretary of State for Business, Innovation and Skills as Principal Regulator for all FE Corporations in England. 
The members of the Corporation, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on pages 15 to 16. 

In setting and reviewing the College's strategic objectives, the Governing Body has had due regard for the Charity 
Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of 
education. The guidance sets out the requirement that all organisations wishing to be recognised as charities must 
demonstrate, explicitly, that their aims are for the public benefit. 

In delivering its mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits through the advancement 
of education: 

• High-quality teaching

• Widening participation and tackling social exclusion

• Excellent progression opportunities for students

• Strong student support systems

• Links with employers, industry and commerce.

Strategic Direction 

The Corporation confirmed the Strategic Intent for the period 2020 - 2025 in February 2020, with Proposals for a 
dynamic, successful and innovative college to deliver the public benefit and the vision: 

New City College exists to give our students a better future. 

To achieve this vision the College will:  

• Use the scale and strength of our group to drive educational excellence and innovation.

• Continue to improve student outcomes and achievement. We will inspire and support every student, whatever 
their background, to maximise their potential within an environment of challenging targets.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 

Strategic Direction (continued) 

• Support our staff to develop their skills and talents and look after their wellbeing.

• Make a positive impact on our local communities and the local economy by meeting the unique needs of all
the areas in which we work, within a group structure.

• Have an influential position locally and nationally. Education must enhance the progression, employment and
life chances of those who study with us. This is our overarching purpose and intent.

The College has set the following strategic priorities: 

• We will create an evidence led, practical approach to developing group wide teaching and learning.

• We will design and implement innovative and efficient approaches to business improvement that empower
staff.

• We will implement an estates strategy that delivers sector leading buildings and facilities.

• We will prioritise staff workload, wellness and sustainability as key themes of our strategic intent
implementation.

• Any future expansion will be within our clear east London and south Essex footprint and bring demonstrable
benefits to students and the organisation.

By 2025 New City College will be: 

• An outstanding and innovative college serving its local communities.

• Focused on benefits to students including their achievement, safety, wellbeing and aspiration.

• Respected locally and influential nationally.

• Recognised as a community asset.

• Financially stable and environmentally sustainable.
• Recognised by our staff as a fair, equal and supportive employer.

Performance indicators 

The College is committed to observing the importance of sector measures and indicators and use the FE Choices 
website which looks at measures such as success rates. 

The following paragraphs set out the performance against these measures and indicators. 

Student achievement  

Over the last four years, overall NCC achievement rates have improved steadily, sustaining outcomes through 
multiple mergers: 

New City College 
Achievement 

% 

2016/17 82.3 
2017/18 83.7 
2018/19 87.6 
2019/20 86.5 
2020/21 87.6 
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 

Student achievement (continued) 

The College delivered more than 36,000 qualifications in 2020/21. 

NCC campuses have maintained a high level of achievement, with many outstanding practices despite the 
exceptional issues created by the pandemic.  Provision at Epping Forest and Hackney campuses are continuing to 
improve, from poor quality provision at point of merger and now have a three-year trend of good results and have 
adopted solid processes from the group which will ensure they sustain quality going forward.  However, the 
Havering hub campuses have only been aligned to the matrix structure since January 2021, despite merging in 
August 2019, and have yet to fully benefit from the approach which has driven improvement at other campuses. 
In particular achievement at the GFE saw a decline in achievement in the first year of merger and, while improved 
by 1.2pp in 2020/21, has yet to make the solid improvement seen at other campuses when they joined NCC. Despite 
multiple mergers, the College has continued to drive quality improvement and has sustained a 3 year trend of 
achievement at or above the last published provider National Rates (NRs 2018/19) for the group. 

The Group has rapidly responded to successive lockdowns, moving provision online to support students’ learning 
effectively.  Much was learned from the first lockdown in March 2020 and the delivery in January 2021 was far 
more effective due to the skills developed by staff over this time.  As far as was possible, the timetable continued 
to be delivered as planned and student engagement replaced attendance as a key measure for monitoring the 
quality of provision.  The high level of retention across the group (94.6%) is an indication of the effectiveness of the 
distance learning and online provision provided (maintained in line with 2019/20 retention which was 94.5%). 
Where timetabled delivery was difficult, particularly for SEND and ESOL learners, a robust programme of distance 
learning was implemented. Campuses remained open for vulnerable learners and ensured those who needed it 
continued to receive face to face tuition and support.   

Ofsted Inspection 

Five of the six constituent colleges were rated "Good" at their last Ofsted Inspections, Tower Hamlets in December 
2013, Hackney in October 2015 and Redbridge in December 2015 and Havering FE and  
Sixth Form were rated as Good in January 2016 and October 2018 respectively. Epping Forest was rated ‘requires 
improvement’ in February 2018 and ‘inadequate’ in 2017/18. At the NCC Ofsted Monitoring Visit in July 2019, the 
outcomes were as follows: 

• What progress have leaders and teachers made in improving teaching, learning and assessment? Outcome:
Reasonable Progress

• What progress have leaders made in setting up secure governance arrangements to ensure the quality of
education and training across the newly-merged College?
Outcome: Significant Progress

Funding 

The College's performance against its key funding targets for the year in respect of activity in the year was: 

• The College achieved 101.3% of its 16-18 learner number target. It achieved 101.5% of its 16-18 Responsive
Funding target.

• The College achieved 81.1% of its ESFA Adult Education Budget for classroom activity and 85.5% of its GLA
Adult Education Budget.

• The College delivered £1,870,661 of Apprenticeship income for the year.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 

Student numbers 

In 2020/21 the College has delivered activity that has produced funding against the Education and Skills Funding 
Agency and Greater London Authority main allocations amounting to £80,829,970 (2019/20: £72,742,059), 
including Additional Learning Support. 

The College had approximately 18,500 (2019/20: 19,700) learners funded by the ESFA or the Greater London 
Authority and 4,000 (2019/20: 4,965) learners funded from other sources. There were 790 apprentices in the year 
compared to 765 in 2019/20. 

Performance against target 

In common with the rest of the further education sector and the wider economy, the impact of Covid-19 continued 
to be a significant on performance for 2020/21. Despite the on-going pandemic, however, the College has achieved 
an operating surplus of £532,000.  

Members approve annual budgets for the College in July and target the Executive to deliver financial outcomes 
measured at Operating level. This is defined as the surplus on ordinary activities before FRS adjustments for 
pensions and holiday accruals and also before other exceptional costs such as those relating to merger and 
restructure. 

Income Operating Surplus 

Corporation approved budget (July 2020) £99.1m 

Actual  £98.3m 

Breakeven 

£0.53m

Members set a breakeven position for 2020/21 which included a pay award of 2.75% which was not matched by 
core funding rate increases.  

The College is reporting on an outturn operating surplus of £532,000 (2020: £31,000 deficit) for the year ending 
2020/21. Income was £3.27m lower than target, due to the impact of Covid-19 and the accelerated reduction in 
Higher Education activity through an independent partner provider. The adverse impact of Covid-19 on 
consolidated income was £1.79m against target, primarily due to much lower revenues from the College’s FE tuition 
fees, Apprenticeship delivery and commercial activities including Westbourne Academy (a language school in 
Bournemouth) and Nursery provision. 

The combined contribution level impact of Covid on the College’s performance was £2.0m. 

In year performance was aided by a £1.1m depreciation charge gain versus budget as a result of post-merger 
policy alignment and considerable costs savings, particularly in non-pay. The better than target operating 
performance is reflective of tight financial management and the utilisation of available Covid-19 revenue support. 
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 
 
Reconciliation to reported deficit 
 
In common with all further education sector Colleges, statutory reporting requirements (page 30) are prescriptive 
in their inclusion of non-cash pension adjustments that arise from the College’s LGPS liabilities. Pension 
commitments are a significant sector issue and a topic for further debate. In aggregate, half of the College’s assets 
are offset by pension liabilities which are very unlikely to ever crystalise. A reconciliation statement is set out below: 

 £000s 

Deficit before other gains and losses per Statement of Comprehensive Income: 7,880 

Operating Surplus 532 

Difference 8,412 

Of which:   

Non-cash items   

 FRS 102 pension costs  5,954 

 Pension interest costs adjustments 1,588 

 FRS holiday accrual 241 

Cash items  

 Merger costs   121 

 Restructure costs 
508 

8412  
 
Financial Objectives 
 
The College's long-term financial objectives were approved as: 

i. Financial health to remain as good to outstanding; 
ii. Surpluses generated to allow the College to meet its capital investment requirements. 

 
During the year, the focus was on the following performance indicators: 
 

KPI At 31 July 2021 
Operating result before exceptional costs including FRS102 at breakeven or better.  Favourable variance – 

surplus of £532k (Page 5 
Financial Results) 

Debt service cover, where the available cash flow for the period must be equal to or 
greater than the annual debt servicing costs. 

Debt servicing costs £nil 
Cash balances of £9.72m  

Operational leverage, where the borrowings should be no more than 3.5 times the 
adjusted surplus for the year. Adjusted surplus is the result for the year adjusted to 
exclude capital grants, depreciation and amortisation, non- cash adjustments for 
pension costs and interest payable. 

No borrowings as at 31 
July 2021 and no 
drawdowns during the 
year. 

Proportion of funding that comes from core funding from the ESFA/GLA, including 
apprenticeship income, which will be as per the budget, 74%. 

ESFA/GLA income 83% 

a) Proportion of staff costs to total income, which will be as per the budget at 70% 
excluding subcontracted income. 

b) Proportion of staff costs and staff adjusted for agency and similar costs and 
subcontracting costs to total income, which will be as per the budget at 69% 
excluding subcontracted income. 

72% 
 
69% 

Current ratio (current assets as a proportion of current liabilities) which per the 
budget for the end of the year will be 1.09:1. 

1.3:1 

Cash days in hand, based on the budget profile of 47 days. 56 days 
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 
 
The College is required to complete the annual Finance Record for the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). 
The Finance Record produces a financial health grading. The current rating is Good.  
 
The reasons for the variances have been reviewed and the Corporation is satisfied with the College's overall 
performance against the objectives. 
 
Financial results 
 
The financial results are set out in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. In summary, these were: 
 

 Year ended 
31 July 

2021 
£000 

Year ended 
31 July 

2020 
£000 

 

Operating surplus/(deficit) before restructuring costs, merger costs and 
adjustments for FRS 102 Pension Costs 532 (31)  
Holiday Pay Accruals adjustment (241) (169)  
Restructuring costs (508) (807)  
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 145 4,786  
Loan Breakage Costs - (1,107)  
Merger related costs (121) (276)  
(Loss)/Surplus before adjustments for FRS 102 Pension Costs (193) 2,396  
Gain on the fair valuation of assets acquired on merger 
with Havering College of Further & Higher Education - 22,102  
Gain on the fair valuation of assets acquired on merger 
with Havering Sixth Form College - 20,539  
Adjustments for FRS 102 Pension Costs 2,097 (44,355)  
Release of Endowment income spent in year (1) (200)  
Gain/(Loss) on Investments 35 (28)  
Surplus per Comprehensive Income 1,938 454  

 
The surplus for the year added to reserves is £1,938,000 (2019/20: a surplus of £454,000). 
 
At 31 July 2021, the Group has accumulated reserves and cash and short term investment balances of £56,751,000 
and £9,716,000 (2019/20: £54,812,000 and £14,541,000 respectively). 
 
The College has two subsidiary companies: 
• OKN1 Limited (formerly, The Trading Company (Hackney) Limited). In the current year, the company made a 

deficit of £162,790 (2019/20: a deficit of £321,860). 
• New City Fitness Limited (formerly, Shoreditch Community Sports Centre Limited. In the current year, the 

company made a deficit of £140,003 (2019/20: a deficit of £106,042). 
Any taxable profits generated by the subsidiaries are transferred to the College under the Gift Aid Scheme. 
 
Tangible fixed asset additions during the year amounted to £18,405,000. This was split between land and buildings 
improvements of £11,618,000 and equipment purchased of £6,787,000. 
 
The College’s net current assets show a negative year end position of £854,000. However, this includes non-cash 
items totalling £4,733,000 (Capital grants £2,802,000 and the Annual leave accruals £1,931,000). Excluding these 
items, the positive net current asset position totals £3,879,000. 
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The College has significant reliance on the ESFA and GLA for its principal funding source, largely from recurrent 
grants. In 2020/21 these bodies provided 83% (2019/20: 75%) of the College's total income. 
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 
 
Treasury policies and objectives 
 
Treasury management of the College's cash flows, its banking and money market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks 
are managed by the Deputy CEO and the Group Finance Director. Short term borrowing for temporary revenue 
purposes is authorised by the Accounting Officer. All other borrowing requires the authorisation of the Corporation 
and shall comply with the requirements of the Financial Memorandum. 
 
Liquidity 
 
The College had no borrowing as at 31 July 2021, with cash balances of £9,716,000 and no debt (2019/20: 
£14,541,000). There was a net cash outflow of £4,825,000 (2019/20 inflow of £3,153,000), which includes a net 
spend on fixed asset additions, after accounting for receipt of deferred capital grants (£8,379,000), totalling 
£10,026,000. 
 
Payment performance 
 
The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, which came into force on 1 November 1998, requires 
colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the 
provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The target set by the Treasury for 
payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95 per cent. In the interests of operational efficiency, it is the College's 
practice to pay suppliers invoices by SACS transmission twice per month. The College incurred no interest charges 
in respect of late payment for this period. 
 
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting 
 
The college’s greenhouse gas emissions and energy use for the period of 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 are set 
out below: 

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 2020/21 2019/20 
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 
 

19,999,716 19,909,882 

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
Gas consumption 
Owned transport 
Total 

 
2,121 

N/A 
2,121 

 
2,206 

N/A 
2,206 

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
Purchased electricity 

 
1,788 

 
1,845 

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
 

3,909 4,051 

Intensity ratio 
Metric tonnes CO2e per member of staff  

 
2.90 

 
3.28 

 
Qualification and reporting methodology 
We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG 
Reporting Protocol – Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government’s Conversion Factors for 
Company Reporting. 
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Intensity measurement  
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per staff member (counted 
as FTE), the recommended ratio for the sector. 
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 
 
Measures taken to improve energy efficiency  
We have rationalised our estate by vacating one building and consolidating provision to existing buildings. Following 
Covid-19, we have increased videoconferencing in order to reduce travel between sites. 
 
Current and Future Development and Performance 
 
Curriculum Developments for 2020/21 
 
In 2020/21, the College supported nearly 24,500 students, comprising of approximately: 9,600 16-19s completing 
study programmes, 14,000 adults and 717 apprentices. 

New City College serves a diverse but geographically coherent urban area, from the edge of central London to the 
outer boroughs of north east London, and south Essex. The group’s catchment areas include areas of high 
deprivation as well as some of the most affluent areas in the country. The majority of the student body live in 
significantly deprived wards; approximately a third of the group’s adult cohort access benefits or income related 
support. A similar percentage of 16-19s completing study programmes are entitled to free meals.  

As a result of the mergers, there have been significant changes across the campuses which form the group. 
However, the College remains clearly anchored in its shared commitment and ethos; of providing its students with 
opportunities through inspiring teaching, learning and assessment.  

New City College continues to have a significant impact on the lives of the students it educates and the communities 
it serves. 

New City College provides a broad-based curriculum offer across each of its main campuses and collectively the 
group delivers learning programmes across 14 of the 15 Subject Sector Areas (SSAs).  The group has begun to refine 
its offer and has identified a number of curriculum hubs, such as for Construction, Sport and Catering, where it 
plans to channel future investment, to develop higher level and specialist learning programmes.  The curriculum 
offer is reviewed annually through the business planning process, to ensure that the group is able to respond 
proactively to regional skills needs. 

For example, the College has redeveloped its Rainham site in Havering to provide new, state of the art facilities so 
that it can respond to the growing need for skills development for modern methods of construction and 
engineering.  The group also continues to support a significant volume of foundation level programmes for adults 
including English, maths and ESOL qualifications, which reflect the needs of the communities it serves.   

Outcomes that learners achieve as a result of the education they have received are predominantly good across the 
group, most provision types and Directorates. The College has demonstrated a strong trend of improvement, led 
by a focus on the quality of teaching and learning. Since the formation of New City College, overall achievement 
rates have continued to rise, from 79.2% in 2015/16, to 87.6% in 2020/21, with increasing numbers of learners and 
are above national rates despite the impact of Covid measures on achievement. These improvements over time 
demonstrate that the consistency of provision is improving across the group and reflect the positive impact of 
merger on student outcomes despite the college successively merging with weaker providers. Curriculum that is 
weaker or requires improvement is identified quickly through critical self-assessment, and quality improvement 
measures are implemented to rapidly improve provision in order not to disadvantage learners.   
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Retention has remained high at 94.6%, demonstrating the quality of the teaching learners receive both in class and 
on Teams and the effectiveness of the support mechanisms in place to ensure they continue to engage with their 
studies despite the difficulties they have faced during the pandemic.   

 
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 
 
Post balance sheet events 
 
The College as part of the transfer of assets and liabilities of the pension fund from the merger with the Havering 
Colleges and to reduce the employer contribution rate for three years will provide a charge on the Hackney campus 
to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for a value £63.19 million. 
 
Resources 
 
The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives. 
 
Tangible Resources 
Tangible resources include the principal College Campuses for: 

• Tower Hamlets, freehold sites at Poplar High Street and Arbour Square 
• Hackney a freehold site at Shoreditch 
• Redbridge, a freehold site at Chadwell Heath 
• Epping, a freehold site at Loughton 
• A freehold site in Bournemouth 
• Havering Borough, freehold sites at Rainham, Ardleigh Green and Wingletye Lane. 

 
Together with a lease which expires in December 2021 for premises in Ilford. 
 
Financial 
As at 31 July 2021, the College had £161.0 million of net assets (excluding the £104.3 million LGPS pension liability) 
and no debt. 
 
People 
During the year ended 31 July 2021, the College employed 1,699 Staff members, of whom 794 are teaching staff.  
 
Reputation 
The College has a good reputation locally and nationally. Maintaining a quality brand is essential for the College's 
success at attracting students and external relationships. 
 
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The system of internal control, including financial, operational and risk management which is designed to protect 
the College's assets and reputation, continues to be developed. 
 
Based on the strategic intent, the College Senior Management Team undertakes a comprehensive review of the 
risks to which the College is exposed. They identify systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions 
which should mitigate any potential impact on the College. The internal controls are then implemented and the 
subsequent year's appraisal will review their effectiveness and progress against risk mitigation actions. In addition 
to the annual review, the College Senior Management Team also consider any risks which may arise as a result of 
a new area of work being undertaken by the College. The significant risks are reviewed by the Audit Committee at 
least twice a year at their meetings. 
 
The operating environment is one of rapid change which is reflected in the nature of the principal risk factors that 
may affect the College, with or without merger or collaboration, and these are described below. This environment 
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requires the Corporation, management and staff to be informed of the changes, aware of the opportunities and 
able to adapt. Not all the risk factors are within the College's control. 
 
The College has managed the impacts and the mitigations required of the COVID 19 pandemic, the most significant 
risk in the reporting period well, in all aspects. The College managed this by adopting the Government guidelines. 
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 
 
• The Executive adopted a framework to safely continue operations of the College balancing at all times the 

needs of our students and staff.  
• The College has continued to provide education and training for the core services during lockdown for children 

of critical workers and vulnerable children/adults and reopened in June and July to support learners to achieve 
their outcomes. The College adopted successfully to an online learning model and delivering good student 
outcomes as reported in the student achievement and progression note on page 3. The College opened all 
campuses for on-site delivery in September 2020 for the 2020/21 financial year. 

• The College honoured all existing contracts and payments to staff and suppliers and furloughed a small number 
of staff employed in the commercial operations of the College. 

• The College’s financial regulations continued to be followed with no waivers required. 
• All Executive and Governance operations continued to operate working within Government guidelines. 
• The College plans and actions for the immediate, short term and longer term to ensure the going concern of 

the College were set, approved and continue to be monitored providing the necessary assurance to all 
stakeholders.  

 
Stakeholder Relationships 
 
In line with other colleges, New City College has many stakeholders. These include: 

• Students; 
• Funding Bodies, primarily the ESFA, GLA and OfS; 
• Staff; 
• Local employers; 
• Local authorities; 
• Government Offices and Local Enterprise Partnerships; 
• The local community; 
• Other FE institutions; 
• Higher education institutions; 
• Trade unions; and 
• Professional bodies. 

 
Stakeholder Relationships (continued) 
 
The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication with them 
through the College internet site and by meetings. 
 
Trade Union Facility Time Publication Requirements 
 
Facility Time is the provision of paid or unpaid time off from an employee’s normal role to undertake TU duties and 
activities as a TU representative. There is a statutory entitlement to reasonable paid time off for undertaking union 
duties. There is no such entitlement to paid time’ to paid time off for undertaking activities.  
 
This agreement sets out the amount of time off that can be provided whilst recognizing fluctuations in use may 
occur depending on demands on time.  Both employers and TU representatives have an important role to play in 
effectively and efficiently managing the use of facility time.  
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) 
 
Relevant Union Officials  

Number of employees who were relevant union officials 
during the relevant period  

Full time equivalent employee number 

22 18.5 
 
Percentage of time spent of facility time 

Percentage of time Number of employees 
0%  
1-50% 22 
51-99%  
100%  

 
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time 

Description  Figures  
Provide the total cost of facility time £39,580 
Provide the total pay bill £69,058,000 
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on 
facility time, calculated as; 
(total cost of facility time ÷ total pay bill) x100 

0.057% 

 
Paid Trade Union activities  

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 
percentage of total paid facility time hours calculated 
as: 
(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by 
relevant union officials during the relevant period  ÷ 
total paid facility time hours) x 100  

3.9% 

 
Equal opportunities and employment of disabled persons 
 
New City College is committed to providing a high quality educational experience and to promoting, maintaining 
and supporting equality and diversity in all aspects of its work. 
 
Equal opportunities and employment of disabled persons (continued) 
 
The College will actively seek to ensure that students and staff experience equality of opportunity and are free from 
harassment, discrimination or victimisation of any kind, regardless of age, sex (gender), disability, learning difficulty, 
sexual orientation, gender reassignment and gender recognition, religious or political belief, race, ethnicity, 
nationality, national origins, family or marital status, social isolation, social status and deprivation, homelessness, 
unemployment, asylum and refugee status or membership of a trade union, or for any other identifiable cause 
protected by law. 
 
Disability statement 
 
The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010 and associated legislation. This has 
been summarised in the College's Single Equality Scheme, published on the College website, and includes the 
following: 

• The College has a Group Curriculum Director for SEND and ALS who provides information, advice and arranges 
support where necessary for students with disabilities; 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College to obtain 
a better understanding of its governance and legal structure.  This statement covers the period from 1 August 2020 
to the date of signing the financial statements. 
 
The College endeavours to conduct its business: 
i. in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life (selflessness, 

integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership); and 
ii. having due regard to the English College’s Code of Good Governance (the Code), as adopted by the College in 

2015. 
 
The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance and does so by self-
assessing its Board on an annual basis, against best governance practice and the Code.  In the opinion of the 
members of the Corporation, the College complies with the Code for the year 31 July 2021.  The members of the 
Corporation recognise that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a particular duty to 
observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times.  
 
The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011.  The members of the 
Corporation, who are also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due 
regard for the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear elsewhere 
in these financial statements. 
 
The Corporation  
 
The Chair of the Corporation for the academic year 2020/21 was Rob Hull and the Vice Chair was Marilyn Hawkins. 
 
The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of this report were 
as listed in Table 1. 
 
Table 1: Governors serving on the College Board during 2020/21 
 

 
 
 
 

Name 
Date of 

appointment 
Term of 
office 

Date of 
resignation/ 
End of Office 

Status of 
appointment 

Committees served 

Rob Hull Jan-19 
4 years 

 
Chair of 

Governors 

Search, F&GP, 
Remuneration, 

Property 
Apr-2019 to 

Dec-2022 

Richard Bint* Aug-19 4 years 
Resigned  

March 2021 
Independent 

F&GP / Havering Local 
Board 

Vivien Bailey Oct-14 4 years 
Reappointed 
October 2018 

Independent CQ&S 

Francine Corbin Dec-20 4 years 
Resigned July 

2021 
Staff C,Q&S 

Stephen Critoph Aug-19 4 years  Independent F&GP, Remuneration 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued) 
 
The Corporation (continued) 
 
Table 1: continued 
 

Cynthia Griffin Jan-19 4 years  Independent CQ&S, Audit, Property 

Marilyn Hawkins Aug-18 4 years  Independent 
F&GP, Search, CQ&S, 

Remuneration 

Steve Hedges Dec-14 4 years 
Reappointed 

Dec 2018 
Staff CQ&S 

Nikki Makinwa Sep-14 4 years 
Resigned July 

2021 
Independent CQ&S 

Gerry McDonald Apr-13 Ex-officio  CEO 
F&GP, Search, CQ&S, 

Property 

Diana Murray Aug-18 4 years  Independent CQ&S 

Dawn Samwell* Aug-19 4 years 
Term ended 

July 2021 
Independent CQ&S 

Lutfey Siddiqi Apr-18 4 years 
Resigned Dec 

2020 
Independent F&GP 

Gareth Wall Oct-13 4 years 

Reappointed 
August 2017, 
Resigned July 

2021 

Independent Audit, Property 

Neil Yeomans Jan-19 4 years  Independent 
Audit, Search, 
Remuneration 

Ryan Mclean  March-20 2 years 
Term ended 

July 2021 
Student CQ&S 

Shehzad Siddiqi March-20 1 year 
Term ended 

July 2021 
Student CQ&S 

Governors can serve a maximum of 2 terms of 4 years each, or up to 8 years, unless there are exceptional 
circumstances.* The Corporation member started the term at one of the merged Colleges.  
 
The non-governors who were co-opted to serve on Committees during the year were: 

Name Committees Served 
Neal Hunt Property 
Cormac MacCrann Property 
Thana Nathan Audit 
Nurul Islam Property 

 
Overall attendance (at Corporation and Committee meetings) was 84%. The Director of Governance as at 31 July 
2021 was Elsa Wright, who joined the College in January 2020. It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring 
independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct. The 
Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the College 
together with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality 
matters and personnel-related matters such as health and safety and environmental issues. The Corporation meets 
five times per year. 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued) 
 
The Corporation (continued) 
 
The Corporation conducts its business through the Corporation Board and its Committees. Each committee has 
terms of reference, which have been approved by the Corporation. These committees are Finance and General 
Purposes, Remuneration, Search & Governance, Curriculum Quality & Students, Audit and Property.  Full minutes 
of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation, are available from the Director of 
Governance at: 
 
New City College 
112 Poplar High Street 
Poplar 
London  
E14 0AF 
 
The Director of Governance maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the Governors. The register 
is available for inspection at the above address. 
 
Members of the Corporation are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the 
College’s expense and have access to the Director of Governance, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that 
all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with.  The appointment, evaluation and removal of the 
Director of Governance are matters for the Corporation as a whole. 
 
Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Governors in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings via an 
electronic Board Portal App.  Briefings are provided on an ad-hoc basis and members of the Corporation receive a 
fortnightly newsletter on sector and College matters.  
 
The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its 
decision making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of 
management and free from any business or other relationship, which could materially interfere with the exercise 
of their independent judgement. 
 
There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair of the Corporation and Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) of the College are separate. 
 
Appointments to the Corporation 
 
Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a whole. The 
Corporation has a Search & Governance Committee, consisting of five members of the Corporation, which is 
responsible for the selection and nomination of any new member for the Corporation’s consideration. The 
Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required. 
 
The Corporation has determined that the maximum number of consecutive terms for which a member may hold 
office is two x 4 years.  The Search & Governance committee provides an Annual Report on its work, which is 
available from the Director of Governance. 
 
Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Committee comprises of four members, including co-optees (a majority of which must be members of 
the Corporation) and excludes the CEO, Chair and staff members. The Committee operates in accordance with  
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued) 
 
Audit Committee (continued) 
 
written terms of reference approved by the Corporation and in accordance with the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. 
 
The Audit Committee meets at least on a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the College’s internal, 
regularity and financial statements auditors, who have access to the Committee for independent discussion, 
without the presence of College management if required.  The Committee also receives and considers reports from 
the main FE funding bodies, as they affect the College’s business. 
 
The College’s internal auditors monitor the systems of internal control, risk management controls and governance 
processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management and the Audit 
Committee. Management are responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal 
audit undertakes periodic follow up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been implemented. 
 
The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal, regularity and financial 
statements auditors and their remuneration for both audit and non-audit work. 
 
The audit committee met four times in the year to 31 July 2021. The members of the committee and their 
attendance records are shown below: 

Committee member Meetings attended 

Neil Yeomans 4 

Cynthia Griffin 2 

Gareth Wall 4 

Thana Nathan 4 

 
Cynthia Griffin joined in the Committer in Autumn 2020 after the first meeting. 
 
Finance & General Purposes committee (F&GP) 
 
The F&GP committee normally comprises of six members.  It operates in accordance with written terms of 
reference approved by the Corporation, advising on appropriate financial policies and procedures subject at all 
times to the requirements of the Financial Memorandum between the Corporation and the Education and Skills 
Funding Agency and the Articles of Government.   
 
Meeting four times a year, the Committee oversees the financial affairs of the Corporation, monitors staffing issues 
and considers and advises the Corporation on matters relating to estates and buildings, health and safety, along 
with determining such other matters that may be delegated to it. 
 
Remuneration committee 
 
The Committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and benefits of 
the Accounting Officer and other senior post-holders.  The Committee met three times during the year and among 
its work, approved the SPH Remuneration Code.  An Annual Report of the Remuneration Committee is available 
from the Director of Governance. 
 
Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2021 are set out in the notes to the financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued) 
 
Curriculum, Quality & Students committee (CQ&S) 
 
The CQ&S committee comprises of a minimum of six members and includes two student governor members and 
two staff members.  It operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation and 
meets on four occasions each academic year.  It advises on the procedures in place for the continuous review of 
the curriculum offered by the College, along with the effectiveness of strategies used by managers to improve  
 
quality and the academic standard of provision for students, including HE and sub-contracted provision.  In addition, 
it has responsibility for reviewing and monitoring the arrangements for the promotion of equality, diversity and 
safeguarding. 
 
Internal control 
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 
The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for reviewing its 
effectiveness.  However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve 
business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or 
loss. 
 
The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Group Principal & CEO, as Accounting Officer, 
for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the College’s policies, aims 
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which he is personally responsible, in accordance 
with the responsibilities assigned to him in the  
 
Financial Memorandum between New City College and the funding bodies. He is also responsible for reporting to 
the Corporation any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 
 
The purpose of the system of internal control 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise 
the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  The 
system of internal control has been in place in New City College for the year ended 31 July 2021 and up to the date 
of approval of the annual report and accounts. 
 
Capacity to handle risk 
 
The Corporation has reviewed the key risks by means of a risk register, to which the College is exposed, together 
with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.  The 
Corporation is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the 
College's significant risks that has been in place for the period ending 31 July 2021 and up to the date of approval 
of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Corporation. 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued) 
 
Internal control (continued) 
 
The risk and control framework 
 
The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative 
procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability.  In particular, it 
includes: 

• comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the members 
of the Corporation; 

• regular reviews by the members of the Corporation of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate 
financial performance against forecasts; 

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 

• clearly defined capital investment control guidelines; 

• the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate. 
 
New City College has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the Skills 
Funding Agency’s Post 16 Audit Code of Practice.  The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis 
of the risks to which the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis.   
 
The analysis of risks and the internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee. 
 
Annually, the Chair of the Audit Committee provides the Corporation with a report on audit activity in the College.  
Further the internal audit provider submits an annual report to the Audit Committee and thence the Corporation.  
The report includes the independent internal audit providers’ opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
College’s system of risk management, controls and governance processes. 
 
Review of effectiveness 
 
As Accounting Officer, the Group Principal & CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control.  His review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by: 

• the work of the internal auditors; 

• the work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the internal control framework; and 

• comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors, the regularity auditors, and the appointed 
funding auditors (where applicable) in their management letters and other reports. 
 

The Group Principal & CEO has been advised on the implications of the result of his review of the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control by the audit committee, which oversees the work of the internal auditor and the Risk 
Management Group, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in 
place. 
 
The Group Principal & CEO and senior management team receives reports setting out key performance and risk 
indicators and considers possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, which are 
embedded within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness training. The CEO and senior management 
team and the Audit Committee also receive regular reports from internal audit, which include recommendations 
for improvement.  The Audit Committee's role in this area is confined to a high level review of the arrangements 
for internal control. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATION OF NEW CITY COLLEGE 
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of New City College (‘the College’) and its subsidiaries (together ‘the 
group’) for the year ended 31 July 2021 which comprise the group and parent college statement of comprehensive 
income, the group and parent college statement of changes in reserves and balance sheets, the group statement 
of cash flows, the principal accounting policies, and the notes to the financial statements. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

♦ give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2021 and of the group’s 
deficit for the year then ended; 

♦ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;  

♦ in all material respects, funds from whatever source administered by the College for specific purposes have 
been properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation;  

♦ in all material respects, funds provided by the OfS, UK Research and Innovation (including Research England), 
the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education have been applied in accordance 
with the relevant terms and conditions; and 

♦ the requirements of OfS’s accounts direction have been met. 

Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and the College in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the 
FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the members of the Corporation’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or 
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and the College’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the members of the Corporation with respect to going concern are 
described in the relevant sections of this report. 
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Other information 
 
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. The members of the Corporation are responsible for the other information 
contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial 
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Post 16 Code of Practice 
issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

♦ proper accounting records have not been kept;  

♦ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

♦ all the information and explanations required for the audit were not received. 

We have nothing to report to you in respect of the following matter, in relation to which the Office for Students 
(OfS) requires us to report to you, if in our opinion: 

♦ the College’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, has been materially 
misstated. 

Responsibilities of the members of the Corporation  

As explained more fully in the statement of responsibilities of members of the Corporation, the members of the 
Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the members of the Corporation determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the members of the Corporation are responsible for assessing the group and 
the College’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the members of the Corporation either intend to liquidate the 
group and the College or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in 
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including 
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including 
fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows: 
♦ the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence, 

capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations; 

♦ we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the group and the College through discussions with 
management, and from our knowledge and experience of the sector;  

♦ we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the 
financial statements or the operations of the group and the College, including the Further and Higher Education 
Act 1992, funding agreements with the ESFA and associated funding rules, ESFA regulations, data protection 
legislation, anti-bribery, safeguarding, employment, health and safety legislation; 

♦ we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries 
of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and 

♦ identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained 
alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit. 

We assessed the susceptibility of the group’s and the College’s financial statements to material misstatement, 
including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by: 

♦ making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their 
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and 

♦ considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. 

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we: 
♦ performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships; 

♦ tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions; and 

♦ assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in the 
accounting policies were indicative of potential bias;  

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures 
which included, but were not limited to: 
♦ agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation; 

♦ reviewing the minutes of Corporation meetings; 

♦ enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and 

♦ reviewing any available correspondence with HMRC and the group’s and the College’s legal advisors (although 
none was noted as being received by the group and the College). 

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and 
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance. 
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations 
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to enquiry of the members of the Corporation and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal 
correspondence, if any. 

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they 
may involve deliberate concealment or collusion. 

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the members of the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with the College’s Articles 
of Government. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Corporation 
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the group and the College and 
the members of the Corporation as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Buzzacott LLP  
Statutory Auditor 
130 Wood Street  
London  
EC2V 6DL 
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REPORTING ACCOUNTANT’S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY 

To: The Corporation of New City College and Secretary of State for Education, acting through Education and Skills 
Funding Agency (the ESFA)  

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 30 June 2021 and further to the requirements and 
conditions of funding in the ESFA’s grant funding agreements and contracts, or those of any other public funder, 
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention 
that would suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received by New City College 
during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have not been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament 
and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.  

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) issued by the ESFA 
and in any relevant conditions of funding concerning adult education notified by a relevant funder. In line with this 
framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from the main funding grants generated 
through the Individualised Learner Record data returns, for which the ESFA has other assurance arrangements in 
place.  

This report is made solely to the Corporation of New City College and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our 
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation of New City College 
and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept, or assume, responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation of New City 
College and the ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.  

Respective responsibilities of New City College and the reporting accountant 

The Corporation of New City College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher Education Act 
1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed, and 
income received, are applied for the purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions conform to 
the authorities that govern them. Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom 
by our profession’s ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our 
engagement letter and the requirements of the Code. We report to you whether anything has come to our 
attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income 
received, during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have not been applied to purposes intended by 
Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.  

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance 
engagement as defined in that framework. The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such 
procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence 
to express a negative conclusion on regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a 
reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. 
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of 
evidence relevant to the regularity of the Corporation’s income and expenditure. 

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes: 

• An assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriety across all of the College’s activities;
• Further testing and review of the areas identified through the risk assessment including enquiry,

identification of control processes and examination of supporting evidence across all areas identified as
well as additional verification work where considered necessary; and
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• Consideration of evidence obtained through the work detailed above and the work completed as part of
our financial statements audit in order to support the regularity conclusion.

Conclusion 

In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects, the 
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 has not been applied 
to purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities that govern 
them.  

Buzzacott LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
130 Wood Street  
London  
EC2V 6DL 
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CONSOLIDATED AND COLLEGE STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Notes Year ended 31 July 
2021 

Year ended 
 31 July 2020 

Group College Group College 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
INCOME 
Funding body grants 2 84,570 84,570 78,315 78,315 
Tuition fees and education contracts 3 9,220 9,220 15,571 15,571 
Other grants and contracts 4 355 265 417 318 
Other income 5 4,123 3,952 4,547 4,270 
Investment income 6 4 4 222 222 

Total income 98,272 98,011 99,072 98,696 

EXPENDITURE 
Staff costs 7 69,058 68,719 63,830 63,303 
Restructuring costs 7 508 502 807 807 
Other operating expenses 8 27,139 27,276 31,395 31,591 
Depreciation and amortisation 10,12 7,834 7,781 7,540 7,488 
Interest payable and other finance costs 9 1,613 1,613 2,607 2,607 

Total expenditure 106,152 105,891 106,179 105,796 

Deficit before other gains and losses (7,880) (7,880) (7,107) (7,100) 

Profit on disposal of fixed assets 145 145 4,786 4,779 

Gain/(Loss) on investments 35 35 (28) (28)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (7,700) (7,700) (2,349) (2,349) 

Gain on the fair valuation of assets and 
liabilities acquired on the merger with Havering 
College of Further & Higher Education 

23 - - 22,102 22,102 

Gain on the fair valuation of assets and 
liabilities acquired on the merger with Havering 
Sixth Form College 

23 - - 20,539 20,539 

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) in respect of pensions 
schemes 22 9,639 9,639 (39,638) (39,638) 

Release of endowment income spent in year (1) (1) (200) (200)

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
for the year 1,938 1,938 454 454 

Represented by: 

Endowment comprehensive income 34 34 (228) (228)
Unrestricted comprehensive income 1,904 1,904 682 682

1,938 1,938 454 454 
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CONSOLIDATED AND COLLEGE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN RESERVES 

Income and 
Expenditure 

Reserve - 
Unrestricted 

Revaluation 
reserve 

Endowment 
Reserve 

Total 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Group 
Balance at 1st August 2019 42,247 11,586 525 54,358 

Deficit from the income and expenditure account (2,321) - (28) (2,349) 

Other comprehensive income 3,003 - - 3,003 
Release of endowment income spent in year - - (200) (200) 

Transfers between revaluation and income and 
expenditure reserves 

399 (399) - - 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure for 
the year 

1,081 (399) (228) 454 

Balance at 31st July 2020 43,328 11,187 297 54,812 

(Deficit)/Surplus from the income and 
expenditure account 

(7,735) - 35 (7,700) 

Other comprehensive income 9,639 - - 9,639 
Release of Endowment income spent in year - - (1) (1) 

Transfers between revaluation and income and 
expenditure reserves 

399 (399) - - 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,303 (399) 34 1,938 

Balance at 31st July 2021 45,631 10,788 331 56,750 

College 
Balance at 1st August 2019 42,247 11,586 525 54,358 

Deficit from the income and expenditure account (2,321) - (28) (2,349) 

Other comprehensive income 3,003 - - 3,003 
Release of Endowment income spent in year - - (200) (200) 

Transfers between revaluation and income and 
expenditure reserves 

399 (399) - - 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure for 
the year 

1,081 (399) (228) 454 

Balance at 31st July 2020 43,328 11,187 297 54,812 

(Deficit)/Surplus from the income and 
expenditure account 

(7,735) - 35 (7,700) 

Other comprehensive income 9,639 - - 9,639 
Release of Endowment income spent in year - - (1) (1) 

Transfers between revaluation and income and 
expenditure reserves 

399 (399) - - 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure for 
the year 

2,303 (399) 34 1,938 

Balance at 31st July 2021 45,631 10,788 331 56,750 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
    

   
Notes 2021  2020   

£’000  £’000 
Cash flow from operating activities 

  
  

(Deficit) for the year 
 

(7,700)  (2,349) 
Adjustment for non-cash items 

 
   

Depreciation and amortisation 10,12 7,834  7,540 
Decrease in stocks 

 
-  3 

Decrease in debtors 13 414  8,884 
Increase in creditors due within one year 14 552  1,043 
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors due after one year and other 
provisions 

15,17 (3,355)  5,040 

Pensions costs less contributions payable 22 5,954  3,321 
Taxation 

 
-  - 

Adjustment for investing or financing activities 
 

   
Investment income 6,11 (39)  (222) 
Interest payable and other finance cost 9 1,613  2,607 
Profit on sale of fixed assets 

 
(145)  (4,786) 

Net cash flow provided by operating activities 
 

5,128  21,081   
   

Cash flows from investing activities     
Net Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  154  13,500 
Investment income 6,11 4  212 
Payments made to acquire fixed assets 10 (18,405)  (11,852) 
Receipt of deferred capital grants 15 8,376  2,257 
  (9,871)  4,117 
Cash flows from financing activities     
Interest paid  (20)  (1,204) 
Finance lease interest paid  (5)  (7) 
Finance leases repaid  (57)  (62) 
Repayments of amounts borrowed  -  (3,864) 
Net assets, excluding net current assets, transferred from the 
Havering Colleges  

-  (16,908) 

     
     
  (82)  (22,045)   

   
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year 

 
(4,825)  3,153    

  
 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 August  19 14,541  11,388 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 July 19 9,716  14,541 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
1 Accounting policies (continued) 

 
Statement of accounting policies  

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered 
material in relation to the financial statements.  
 
Basis of preparation  

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice: 
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE SORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2020 
to 2021 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in 
the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland" (FRS 102). The College is a public benefit entity and has therefore 
applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102.  
 
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's accounting policies.  
 
Basis of accounting  

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention as modified by the use of 
previous valuations as deemed cost at transition for certain non-current assets.  
 
Going concern  

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance, are 
set out in the Operating and Financial Review. The financial position of the College, its cashflow, liquidity and 
borrowings are described in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes. The College has undertaken 
additional financial risk assessments and reported at every Corporation meeting since the start of the COVID 19 
pandemic to conclude that there are no material impacts that could cast significant doubt over their ability to 
continue as a going concern. 
 
The College's forecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within its existing finances 
for at least the next 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. Accordingly, the College 
has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the at least 
the next 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements, and for this reason will continue to 
adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial Statements.  
 
Basis of consolidation  

In preparing these financial statements the College has reviewed the appropriate treatment for business 
combinations in line with FRS 102.  
 
Where the business combination is of entities with comparable income levels, asset bases and the complexity of 
operations, it is accounted for using merger accounting, with the prior year amounts being restated accordingly to 
reflect the merged position.  
 
Otherwise, business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method and the assets and 
liabilities acquired are adjusted to fair values, using external professional advisers where appropriate.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 

1 Accounting policies (continued) 
 

Basis of consolidation (continued) 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, 
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. Control comprises the power to govern 
the financial and operating policies of the investee so as to obtain benefit from its activities. 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the College and its subsidiary companies, OKN1 Limited (previously 
known as The Trading Company (Hackney) Limited) and New City Fitness Limited (previously known as the 
Shoreditch Community Sports Centre Limited), all controlled by the Group. Intra-group transactions are eliminated 
fully on consolidation. In accordance with FRS 2, the activities of the student union have not been consolidated 
because the College does not control those activities. All financial statements are made up to 31 July 2021.  
 
Recognition of income  

Funding body recurrent grants are recognised in line with best estimates for the period of what is receivable and 
depend on the particular income stream involved. Any under or over achievement for the Adult Skills budget is 
adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant recognised in the income and expenditure account. The 
final grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the 
funding body at the end of November following the year end, and the results of any funding audits. 16-18 learner-
responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract adjustments.  
 
The recurrent grant from Office for Students (OfS) represents the funding allocations attributable to the current 
financial year and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
 
Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the expected 
useful life of the asset, under the accrual method as permitted by FRS 102. Other capital grants are recognised in 
income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met.  
 
Income from tuition fees is recognised in the period for which it is received and includes all fees payable by students 
or their sponsors, for example the National Health Service.  
 
Income from grants, contracts and other services rendered is included to the extent the conditions of the funding 
have been met or the extent of the completion of the contract or service concerned.  
All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it is 
earned. Income from restricted purpose endowment funds not expended in accordance with the restrictions of the 
endowment in the period is transferred from the income and expenditure account to accumulated income within 
endowment funds.  
 
Post-retirement Benefits  

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme 
(TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit plans, which are externally 
funded. In addition, the College provides defined contribution schemes to a small number of employees.  
 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over 
employees' working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of 
current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of 
valuations using a prospective benefit method.  
The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and 
liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution 
plan and the contributions recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services 
are rendered by employees.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 

1 Accounting policies (continued) 
 

Post-retirement Benefits (continued)  

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities are 
measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality 
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least 
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. 
 
The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, 
benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on 
the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and comprises 
the interest cost on the defined benefit pension obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated. 
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the 
benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the 
scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.  
 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.  
 
Short term Employment benefits  

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an 
expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued and 
measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.  
 
Non-current Assets - Tangible fixed assets  

Land and Buildings  
Land and buildings inherited from the local education authority are stated in the balance sheet at valuation on the 
basis of depreciated replacement cost as the open market value for existing use is not readily obtainable. The 
associated credit is included in the revaluation reserve. The difference between depreciation charged on the 
historic cost of assets and the actual charge for the year calculated on the revalued amount is released to the 
income and expenditure account on an annual basis.  
 
Land and buildings acquired through merger are dealt with using acquisition accounting, are revalued to fair value, 
based on independent professional advice. The land & buildings at the Havering campuses were revalued on the 1 
August 2019. 
 
Building improvements made since incorporation are included in the balance sheet at cost.  
 
Freehold land is not depreciated.  
 
Freehold buildings are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the College of 50 years. The College 
has a policy of depreciating major adaptations (in excess of £1,000,000) to buildings over the remaining period of 
their useful economic life of 50 years. Other adaptations (less than £1,000,000) to buildings are depreciated over 
the period of their useful economic life of up to 15 years. 
 
Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated as above. 
The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, and are released to the income and 
expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a systematic basis consistent 
with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one year and those 
due after more than one year.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
1 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
Finance costs, which are directly attributable to the construction of land and buildings, are not capitalised as part 
of the cost of those assets.  
 
Non-current Assets - Tangible fixed assets (continued)  

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. 
 
On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land and 
buildings, which were revalued in 1996, as deemed cost but not to adopt a policy of revaluations of these properties 
in the future.  
 
Assets under construction  
Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects' certificates and other direct 
costs, incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.  
 
Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets  
Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets it is charged to the income and expenditure 
account in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which case it is capitalised and 
depreciated on the relevant basis: 
 
• Market value of the fixed asset has subsequently improved 
• Asset capacity increases 
• Substantial improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating costs 
• Significant extension of the asset's life beyond that conferred by repairs and maintenance 

 
Equipment  
Equipment costing less than £1000 per individual item is written off to the income and expenditure account in the 
period of acquisition. All other equipment is capitalised at cost.  
 
Other equipment is depreciated over its useful economic life as follows: 
 
• motor vehicles - 5 years on a straight-line basis 
• general equipment - 3, 5 & 10 years on a straight line basis 
• computer equipment - 6 years on a straight-line basis 
• Software - 5 & 10 years on a straight-line basis 
• furniture, fixtures and fittings - 10 years on a straight-line basis. 

 
Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants, it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance with 
the above policy, with the related grant being credited to a government capital grant account and released to the 
income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related equipment.  
 
Leased assets  

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Leasing agreements 
which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of an asset are treated as if the 
asset had been purchased outright and are capitalised at their fair value at the inception of the lease and 
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful economic lives of equivalently owned assets. The 
capital element outstanding is shown as obligations under finance leases.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
1 Accounting policies (continued) 

 
The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element outstanding. 
Where finance lease payments are funded in full from funding council capital equipment grants, the associated 
assets are designated as grant-funded assets. 
 
Investments and endowment assets  

Listed investments held as fixed assets or endowment assets are stated at market value. Current asset investments, 
which may include listed investments, are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value.  
 
Goodwill  

Goodwill is recognised as an asset at the date that control is acquired. Goodwill is measured as the excess of the 
sum of the consideration paid, and the fair value of the net assets transferred. Goodwill is amortised over a 10 year 
period. An annual review is carried out of the goodwill to confirm the carrying value as at 31 July 2021.  
 
Foreign currency translation  

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of 
exchange ruling at the end of the financial period with all resulting exchange differences being taken to the income 
and expenditure account in the period in which they arise.  
 
Taxation  

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it 
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is potentially 
exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 
Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such 
income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. The College is partially exempt in respect of Value 
Added Tax, so that it can only recover a minor element of VAT charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is 
included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs 
themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature. The College's subsidiary company is subject to corporation tax and 
VAT in the same way as any commercial organisation.  
 
Provisions and contingent liabilities  

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation 
is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance 
cost in the statement of comprehensive income in the period it arises.  
 
A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will only 
be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
College. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it 
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably.  
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
1 Accounting policies (continued) 
 

Liquid resources  

Liquid resources include sums on short-term deposits with recognised banks, building societies and government 
securities and can be readily converted to cash within three months. 

 
Agency arrangements  

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of discretionary support Funds. Related payments 
received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are included in the Income and 
Expenditure account as appropriate.  
 
Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty  

In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements: 
 
• Impairment of the carrying value of tangible fixed assets and goodwill 

A review has been undertaken to determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the group's 
tangible assets, including goodwill. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the 
economic viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a 
larger cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit. 

 
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
• Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives taking into 
account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed 
annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as 
technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments 
consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. 
 

• Local Government Pension Scheme 
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of 
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in 
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, 
which are disclosed in note 22, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll 
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2021. Any differences between the 
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying 
amount of the pension liability. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
2 Funding body grants 
 

 2021  2020 
 Group College  Group College 
 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 
      
Recurrent grants      
Education and Skills Funding Agency - adult 1,657 1,657  2,868 2,868 
Education and Skills Funding Agency - 16-18 58,551 58,551  52,974 52,974 
Education and Skills Funding Agency - apprenticeships 1,871 1,871 

 
1,975 1,975 

Greater London Authority - adult  16,057 16,057  15,410 15,410 
Office for Students 277 277  713 713 
      
Specific grants      
Education and Skills Funding Agency - provider relief scheme  - -  103 103 
Education and Skills Funding Agency - 16-19 Tuition Fund 

 

1,301 1,301  - - 
Education and Skills Funding Agency - Covid Mass Testing 

 

158 158  - - 
Education and Skills Funding Agency - Sector Based Work Academies 

 

66 66  - - 
Education and Skills Funding Agency - High value Courses for school 
and college leavers 

21 21  - - 

National Skills Fund 

 

8 8    
ESFA Non-recurrent grants 108 108  181 181 
GLA Non-recurrent grants  81 81  68 68 
Teacher Pension Scheme contribution grant  2,143 2,143  1,992 1,992 
Releases of government capital grants 2,075 2,075  1,831 1,831 
HE grants 196 196  200 200 
Total 84,570 84,570  78,315 78,315 

 
The Corporation has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support schemes in 
response to the coronavirus outbreak. 
 
The funding received for 16-19 Tuition Fund covered costs of £1,301,000, funding for Covid Mass Testing covered 
costs of £158,000, funding for Sector Based Work Academies covered costs of £66,000, funding for High Value 
Courses covered costs of £21,000 and funding for National Skills Fund covered costs of £8,000 in 2020 to 2021. 
 
2b HE Grant and Fee income 
 

 2021  2020 
 Group College  Group College 
 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 
      
Grant income from the Office for Students 473 473  914 914 
Fee income for taught awards (exc. VAT) 2,747 2,747  6,149 6,149 
Total 3,220 3,220  7,063 7,063 

 
HE grant and fee income relate to courses at Level 4 and above. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
3 Tuition fees and education contracts 
 

 2021  2020 
 Group College  Group College 
 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 
      
Adult education fees 656 656  1,255 1,255 
Fees for FE loan supported courses 537 537  1,173 1,173 
Fees for HE loan supported courses 2,747 2,747  6,149 6,149 
International student fees 172 172  328 328 
Total tuition fees 4,112 4,112  8,905 8,905 
Education contracts 5,108 5,108  6,666  6,666  
Total 9,220 9,220  15,571 15,571 

 
 
4 Other Grants and Contracts 
 

 2021  2020 
 Group College  Group College 
 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 
      
Erasmus - -  143 143 
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant 212 122  175 76 
Other grants and contracts 143 143  99 99 
Total 355 265  417 318 

 
The Corporation furloughed staff who work within the College's commercial related activities which included its 
language school and two subsidiary companies, New City Fitness Ltd and OKN1 Ltd under the government’s 
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The funding received in respect of 40 staff of £212,000 relates to expenditure 
which are included within the staff costs note below as appropriate. 
 
5 Other income 
 

 2021 
 

 2020 
 Group College  Group College 
 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 
      
Catering and residences 53 10  168 48 
Other income generating activities 1,785 1,687  2,230 2,081 
Non government capital grants 270 270  269 269 
Property income 1,767 1,737  1,649 1,641 
Miscellaneous income 248 248  231 231 
Total 4,123 3,952  4,547 4,270 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
6 Endowment and investment income 
 

 2021  2020 
 Group College  Group College 
 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 
      
Other investment income - -  200 200 
Other interest receivable 4 4  22 22 
Total 4 4  222 222 

 
7 Staff costs 
 
The average number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed by the College during the year was: 
 

 2021   2020  
 Group No.   Group No.  
      
Teaching staff 794   803  
Non-teaching staff 905   975  
 1,699   1,778  
      
Staff costs for the above persons 2021   2020  
 Group   Group  
 £’000   £’000  
      
Wages and salaries 49,602   47,534  
Social security costs 5,013   4,716  
Other pension costs  14,443   11,580  
Payroll sub total 69,058   63,830  
      
Contracted out staffing services -   -  
      
Staff costs before restructuring costs 69,058   63,830  
Fundamental restructuring costs      

- Contractual 508   807  
- Non-contractual -   -  

 69,566   64,637  
 
Key management personnel - College and Group 
 
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the College Senior Management Team which 
comprises the Group Principal and Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy CEO, the three College Principals, and five 
directors with cross-college responsibility  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
7 Staff costs (continued) 
 
Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff 
 

 2021   2020  
 No.   No.  

The number of key management personnel 
including the Accounting Officer was: 10   10  
 
The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual emoluments, excluding pension 
contributions and employers national insurance but including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was: 
 

 Key Management  Other staff 
 2021 2020  2021 2020 
 No. No.  No. No. 
£60,001 to £65,000 - -  12 6 
£65,001 to £70,000 - -  8 8 
£70,001 to £75,000 - -  8 7 
£75,001 to £80,000 - -  8 2 
£80,001 to £85,000 - 4  3 4 
£85,001 to £90,000 3 -  1 1 
£95,001 to £100,000 1 -  - - 
£100,001 to £105,000 1 1  - - 
£105,001 to £110,000 1 -  - - 
£120,001 to £125,000 - 3  - - 
£125,001 to £130,000 3 -  - - 
£150,001 to £155,000 - 1  - - 
£235,001 to £240,000 - 1  - - 
£240,001 to £245,000 1 -  - - 
 10 10  40 28 

 
Key management personnel emoluments is made up as follows: 
 

    2021 2020 
    £’000 £’000 
      

Salaries – gross of salary sacrifice   1,133 1,184 
Employer’s National Insurance   145 156 
Benefits in kind    - - 
    1,278 1,340 
Pension contributions    231 238 
Total emoluments    1,509 1,578 
 
There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor any salary sacrifice 
arrangements in place. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
7 Staff costs (continued) 
 
The above key management personnel and other staff table seven other staff post holders who were not in post 
for a full year and the remuneration for these employees was less than £60,000, although their full time equivalent 
salaries exceeded £60,000. This includes one post holder within the £70,001 to £75,000 banding, one post holder 
in the £65,001 to £70,000 banding and five post holders in the £60,001 to £65,000 banding. 
 
The College’s Accounting Officer and other key management personnel are paid a fair and appropriate 
remuneration based on the value delivered by the individual acting within their role. The value factors considered 
by the College are market rates, roles, skills and experience. The remuneration packages of both the Accounting 
Officer and senior post holders are regularly bench marked within the sector and remuneration decisions are based 
on robust evidence. 
 
The above compensation includes amounts payable to the Group Principal and Chief Executive Officer who is the 
Accounting Officer (who is also the highest paid officer) of: 
 
    2021 2020 
    £’000 £’000 
      
Salaries    241 235 
Benefits in kind     - - 
      
    241 235 
      
Pension contributions    57 54 
      
Total compensation    298 289 
 
The Corporation has adopted AoC’s Senior Staff Remuneration Code in July 2019 and continue to assess pay in line 
with its principles in future 
 
The remuneration package of Senior post holders, including the Group Principal and Chief Executive Officer, is subject 
to annual review by the Remuneration Committee of the Corporation who use benchmarking information to provide 
objective guidance. 
 
The Group Principal and Chief Executive Officer reports to the Chair of the Corporation, who undertakes an annual 
review of his performance against the College’s overall objectives using both qualitative and quantitative measures of 
performance. 
 
Relationship of Group Principal and Chief Executive Officer pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple. 

 2021 2020 
 £’000 £’000 

Group Principal and CEO’s basic salary as a multiple of the median of all staff 7.03:1 7.36:1 

Group Principal and CEO’s total remuneration (including pension contributions) as a 
multiple of the median of all staff      

7.53:1 7.84:1 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
8 Other operating expenses 
 

 2021  2020 
 Group College  Group College 
 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 
      
Teaching costs 12,153 12,151  15,261 15,261 
Non-teaching costs 5,744 5,902  7,480 7,748 
Premises costs 9,242 9,223  8,654 8,582 
Total 27,139 27,276  31,395 31,591 

      
Other operating expenses include:      
 2021  2020 
  Group   Group 
  £’000   £’000 
Auditors’ remuneration:      

Financial statements audit current year  53   88 
Financial statements audit previous year  -   5 
Internal audit (not performed by financial 
auditors) 

 
40   50 

Other services provided by the financial 
statements auditors* 

 
5   13 

Hire of assets under operating leases  153   265 
Hire of land and buildings  270   302 

 
*includes £2,250 in respect of TPA Certification and £3,042 in respect of Corporate Taxation advice for the 
subsidiary companies 
 
9 Interest payable and other finance cost – Group and College 
  

   2021 2020 
    £’000 £’000 
On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans    20 97 
Loan breakage costs    - 1,107 
On finance leases    5 7 
Pension finance costs (note 22)    1,588 1,396 
    1,613 2,607 
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10 Tangible fixed assets (Group) 
 

 Group 
 Land and 

buildings 
Equipment, 
fixtures and 

fittings 

Assets in the 
Course of 

Construction 

Total 

 Freehold    
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Cost or valuation     
At 1 August 2020 227,547 16,428 7,464 251,439 
Additions 10,697 6,787 921 18,405 
Disposals - (11) - (11) 
Reclassification 5,317 300 (5,617) - 
At 31 July 2021 243,561 23,504 2,768 269,833 
     
Depreciation     
At 1 August 2020 44,360 4,911 - 49,271 
Charge for the year 4,769 2,964 - 7,733 
Elimination in respect of disposals - (2) - (2) 
At 31 July 2021 49,129 7,873 - 57,002 
     
Net book value at 31 July 2021 194,432 15,631 2,768 212,831 
     
Net book value at 31 July 2020   183,187        11,517  7,464   202,168  
     
 College 
 Land and 

buildings 
Equipment, 
fixtures and 

fittings 

Assets in the 
Course of 

Construction 

Total 

 Freehold    
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Cost or valuation     
At 1 August 2020 227,483 16,081 7,464 251,028 
Additions 10,697 6,782 921 18,400 
Disposals - (11) - (11) 
Reclassification 5,317 300 (5,617) - 
At 31 July 2021 243,497 23,152 2,768 269,417 
     
Depreciation     
At 1 August 2020 44,353 4,862 - 49,215 
Charge for the year 4,763 2,917 - 7,680 
Elimination in respect of disposals - (2) - (2) 
At 31 July 2021 49,116 7,777 - 56,893 
     
Net book value at 31 July 2021 194,381 15,375 2,768 212,524 
     
Net book value at 31 July 2020 183,130  11,219  7,464   201,813  

 
 



NEW CITY COLLEGE Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31 July 2021 

47 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
10 Tangible fixed assets (continued) 
 
Other than as noted in  the accounting policies, land and buildings were valued in 1993 at depreciated replacement 
cost by a firm of independent chartered surveyors. Other tangible fixed assets inherited from the LEA at 
incorporation have been valued by the College on a depreciated replacement cost basis with the assistance of 
independent professional advice. 
 
The College has surplus land at its Havering College, Ardleigh Green Campus as at July 2021 totalling £5,095,000. 
The disposal of this land is expected during 2021/22 financial year for £7,500,000, with the related profit on sales 
of fixed assets to be disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

11 Non-current investments – Group & College 

   2021 
 

2020 
     £’000 £’000 

Endowment assets:      
Balance at 1 August 2020    297 525 
Appreciation of endowment asset investment    35 (28) 
Released to income in the reporting period    (1) (200) 
Balance at 31 July 2021    331 297 
      
   2021 2020 
    £’000 £’000 
Investment in subsidiary companies    109 109 
Less provision for impairment    (109) (109) 
    - - 
      
Total    331 297 
      
Endowment assets are represented by:      
Charities Aid Foundation IM CAF Fixed Interest Fund and UK Equity Fund, 
Accumulation units. 

 
225 191 

Cash balances    106 106 
    331 297 

 
The College has 100 per cent of the issued ordinary £1 shares of the following companies all incorporated in England 
and Wales: 

• OKN1 formerly, The Trading Company (Hackney) Limited. Its principal activity is to operate as a commercially 
trading restaurant. 

• New City Fitness formerly, Shoreditch Community Sports Centre Limited. Its principal business activity is the 
operational management of the sports centre. 
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12 Goodwill 

This arises from the acquisition of the assets and undertaking of Westbourne Academy 
£’000 

Fair value on acquisition 1,015 

Released to income and expenditure account 
At 1 August 2020 (398) 
Release for the year (101) 
At 31 July 2021 (499) 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2021 516 
At 1 August 2020 617 

13 Debtors 

2021 2020 
Group College Group College 
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Amounts falling due within one year: 
Trade receivables 812 807 541 535 
Prepayments and accrued income 1,689 1,686 2,255 2,226 
Amount owed by group undertakings: 
Subsidiary undertakings - 418 - 452
Amounts owed by the ESFA 342 342 461 461
Other Debtors 4,780 4,780 4,780 4,780 

Total 7,623 8,033 8,037 8,454 

14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

2021 2020 
Group College Group College 
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Obligations under finance leases (note 16) 38 38 57 57 
Trade payables 2,867 2,866 3,879 3,876 
Other taxation and social security 2,264 2,258  2,087  2,092 
Accruals and deferred income 8,637 8,615  8,718  8,688 
Deferred income - government capital grants 2,802 2,802  2,200  2,201 
Amounts owed to ESFA 990 990 262 262 
Amounts owed to GLA 214 214 - - 
Other creditors 384 434 441 491 

Total 18,196 18,217 17,644 17,667 
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 

2021 2020 
Group College Group College 
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Obligations under finance leases (note 16) 34 34 72 72 
Deferred income - government capital grants 46,855 46,855 41,619 41,619 
Other Creditors 1,343 1,343 1,381 1,381 
Amounts owed by the ESFA 1,046 1,046 1,098 1,098 

Total 49,278 49,278 44,170 44,170 

16 Maturity of debt 

a) Bank loans and overdrafts

There were no bank loans or overdrafts at 31 July 2021 (2020 – £NIL). 

b) Finance leases

The net finance lease obligations to which the College is committed are: 

2021 2020 
Group College Group College 
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

In one year or less 38 38 57 57 
Between one and two years 34 34 40 40 
Between two and five years - - 32 32 

72 72 129 129 

17 Provisions – Group and College 

Defined benefit 
pension obligations 

(Note 22) 

Enhanced pension Total 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

At 1 August 2020 106,391 2,646 109,037 

Net cost in the period (2,097) 49 (2,048) 
Transferred from income and expenditure - (193) (193) 

At 31 July 2021 104,294 2,502 106,796 
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18 Endowment Reserves 

Restricted net assets relating to endowments are as follows: 

Permanent 
Restricted 

Permanent 
Unrestricted 

Total 
Permanent 

Expendable 
Restricted 

Total 
2021 

Total 
2020 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
At 1 August 2020 

191 42 233 64 297 525 

Gain/(Losses) in market 
value 

35 - 35 - 35 (28) 

Released to income in 
the reporting period 

- (1) (1) - (1) (200)

At 31 July 2021 226 41 267 64 331 297 

Consists of: 
Capital 100 42 142 64 206 206 
Accumulated income 

126 (1) 125 - 125 91 

226 41 267 64 331 297 

Analysis of type of purpose: 

Student Hardship 
226 41 267 64 331 297 

226 41 267 64 331 297 

19 Cash and cash equivalents 

At 1 August 
2020 

Cash flows At 31 July 
2021 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Cash and cash equivalents 14,541 (4,825) 9,716 
Total 14,541 (4,825) 9,716 

20 Capital commitments 

2021 2020 
£’000 £’000 

Commitments contracted for at 31 July 2,041 8,787 
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21 Lease Obligations 

At 31 July the College had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: 
Group and College 

2021 2020 
£’000 £’000 

Future minimum lease payments due 

Land and buildings 
Not later than one year 102 131 

102 131 
Other 
Not later than one year 91 99 
Later than one year and not later than five years 11 24 

102 123 

Total lease payments due 204 254 

22 Defined Pension Obligations 

The College’s employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: The Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the London Pension Fund Authority (LGPS) for non-
teaching staff, which is managed by London Pension Partnership. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit plans. 

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest formal 
actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019. 

2021 2020 
Total pension cost for the year £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Teachers’ Pension Scheme: contributions paid 6,084 5,595 

Local Government Pension Scheme: 
Contributions paid 2,356 2,403 
FRS 102 (28) charge 5,954 3,321 
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 

8,310 5,724 

Enhanced pension charge to Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

49 261 

Total Pension Cost for Year 14,443 11,580 

At 31 July 2021, contributions amounting to £1,002,630 (2020: £928,329) were payable to the schemes and are 
included in creditors. 
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22 Defined Pension Obligations (continued) 
 
Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
 
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the 
Teachers' Pension scheme Regulations 2014. These regulations apply to teachers in schools and other educational 
establishments. Membership is automatic for teachers and lecturers at eligible institutions.  Teachers and lecturers 
are able to opt out of the TPS. 
 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis – these contributions, along 
with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Act. 
Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by parliament. 
 
Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The College is unable to 
identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. 
 
Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions 
to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out above the information available on 
the plan and the implications for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution rates. 
 
The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made under the Public Service Pension Act 2013. 
Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of return assuming funds are invested in notional 
investments that produce that real rate of return. 
 
The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by 
the Department for Education (the Department) in April 2019.  The valuation reported total scheme liabilities 
pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £218 
billion, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the 
valuation date) of £198 billion giving a notional past service deficit of £22 billion. 
 
As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of the pensionable pay from 
September 2019 onwards (compared to 16.48% during 2018/19). DfE has agreed to pay a teacher pension 
employer contribution grant to cover the additional costs during the 2020/21 academic year. 
 
A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
website. 
 
The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £6,084,000 (2020: £5,595,000). 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by London Pension 
Fund Authority. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 July 2021 was £3,395,000, of which employer’s 
contributions totalled £2,356,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £1,039,000. The agreed contribution rates 
for future years are 14.4% for employers and range from 2.9% to 11.4% cent for employees, depending on salary. 
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22 Defined Pension Obligations (continued) 

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2019 updated to 31 July 
2021 by a qualified independent actuary. 

At 31 July 2021 At 31 July 2020 
Rate of increase in salaries 3.80% 3.25% 
Future pensions increases 2.80% 2.25% 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.60% 1.35% 
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.80% 2.25% 
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50% 50% 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.  The 
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

At 31 July 2021 At 31 July 2020 
Years Years 

Retiring today 
Males 21.70 21.0 
Females 24.10 23.7 
Retiring in 20 years 
Males 23.20 22.4 
Females 25.60 25.3 

The College’s share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date and the expected rates of return were: 

Fair Value at 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

Fair Value 
at 31 July 

2020 
£’000 

Equities 82,397 69,411 
Bonds 45,308 39,510 
Property 12,406 11,913 
Cash 5,793 8,731 
Total market value of 145,904 129,565 

Weighted average expected long term rate of 
return 

1.60% 1.35% 

Actual return on plan  17,729 2,.361 
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22 Defined Pension Obligations (continued) 
 
The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan [and enhanced pension 
benefits] is as follows: 
 

 2021  2020 
 £’000  £’000 
Fair value of plan assets 145,904  129,565 
Present value of plan liabilities (250,053)  (235,799) 
Present value of unfunded liabilities (145)  (157) 
Net pensions (liability)/asset (note 17) (104,294)  (106,391) 

 
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as follows: 
 

 2021  2020 
 £’000  £’000 
Amount included in staff costs    
Current service cost (8,306)  (5,630) 
Past service cost -  (60) 
Total (8,306)  (5,690) 
    
Amounts included in interest payable    
Net interest charge (1,588)  (1,396) 
 (1,588)  (1,396) 

 
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: 
 

 2021  2020 
 £’000  £’000 
Return on pension plan assets 15,988  (352) 
Experience gains/(losses) arising on defined 
benefit pension obligations  

4,783  (11,147) 

Changes in assumptions underlying the present 
value of plan liabilities  

(11,132)  (28,139) 

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income 

9,639  (39,638) 
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22 Defined Pension Obligations (continued) 

Movement in net defined benefit (liability)/asset during year 

2021 2020 
£’000 £’000 

Deficit in scheme at 1 August     (106,391) (36,674)   
Movement in year: 

Current service cost  (8,306)  (5,630) 
Employer contributions 2,352   2,369 
Past service cost -  (60) 
Net interest on the defined (liability) (1,588)  (1,396) 
Liability taken on with merger of Havering 
College of Further & Higher Education -     (20,194) 
Liability taken on with merger of Havering Sixth 
Form College -  (5,168) 
Actuarial gain/(loss) 9,639     (39,638) 

Net defined benefit (liability)/asset at 31 July (104,294)  (106,391)  

Asset and Liability Reconciliation 

2021 2020 
£’000 £’000 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit pension obligations 

Defined benefit pension obligations at 1 August 235,956 126,984 
Current service cost 8,306 5,630 
Interest cost 3,161 3,992 
Contributions by Scheme participants 1,039 943 
Experience (gain)/loss on defined benefit pension 
obligations 

(4,783) 9,763 

Changes in financial assumptions 14,015 28,214 
Estimated benefits paid (4,613) (4,339) 
Change in demographic assumptions (2,883) (75) 
Liabilities assumed / (extinguished) on settlements - 64,784 

Curtailments and settlements - 60 
Defined benefit pension obligations at 31 July 250,198 235,956 
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22 Defined Pension Obligations (continued) 
 
Changes in fair value of plan assets 

 2021  2020 
 £’000  £’000 
Fair value of plan assets at 1 August 129,565  90,310 
Interest on plan assets 1,741  2,713 
Return on plan assets 15,820  (469) 
Employer contributions 2,352  2,369 
Contributions by Scheme participants 1,039  943 
Estimated benefits paid (4,613)  (4,339) 
Other actuarial (losses) -  (1,384) 
Settlement prices received  -  39,422 
Fair value of plan assets at 31 July 145,904  129,565 

 
23 Business Acquisitions & Mergers 
 
In 1 August 2019, the College merged with the Havering College of F&HE and the Havering Sixth Form College. 
Given the relative size of the two colleges, this has been accounted for using acquisition accounting.   
 
The net assets as at 1 August 2019 were as follows: 

 Havering College of F&HE  Havering Sixth Form College 
 Book value at 31 July 2019  Book value at 31 July 2019 
 £’000  £’000 
Tangible Fixed Assets 52,883 

 

 13,703 
    
Current Assets    
     Trade and other receivables 648 

 

 149 
     Cash and cash equivalents 1,179 

 

 3,263 
    
Creditors falling due within one year (10,919) 

 

 (1,765) 

 
    
Net Current Assets (9,092) 

 

 1,647 

 
    
Total assets less current liabilities 43,791 

 

 15,350 

 
    
Creditors falling due after more than one year -  (3,218) 

 
Provisions    
     Defined benefit pension obligations (17,279)  (3,373) 
     Other Provision (1,495)  - 
    
Total net assets 25,017 

 

 8,759 

     
Reserves    
     Income and expenditure reserve (2,917)  2,933 
     Revaluation reserve 27,934  5,826 
Total unrestricted reserves 25,017 

 

 8,759 
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24 Post Balance Sheet Events 

The College as part of the transfer of assets and liabilities of the pension fund from the merger with the Havering 
Colleges and to reduce the employer contribution rate for three years will provide a charge on the Hackney campus 
to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for a value £63.19 million. 

25 Related Party Transactions 

Due to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the Corporation being drawn from local public 
and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a 
member of the Corporation may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at 
arm’s length and in accordance with the College’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures. 

Only the details below concerning the College’s subsidiary companies and four members of the Corporation were 
identified which should be disclosed under Financial Reporting Standard 8 Related Party Disclosures. 

OKN1 Limited (Formerly The Trading Company (Hackney) Limited), a subsidiary of the College 

There were no trading transactions in the year. The balance due to the College outstanding at the year end 
amounted to £992,000 (2020 - £876,000). 

New City Fitness Limited (Formerly Shoreditch Community Sports Centre Limited,) a subsidiary of the College 

There were no trading transactions in the year. The balance due to the College outstanding at the year end 
amounted to £543,000 (2020 - £499,000). 

Poplar HARCA – a company in which Neal Hunt is a Director of Poplar Harca Projects and Developments 

Purchase transactions in the year amounted to NIL (2020 NIL). Sales transactions in the year amounted to £1,260 
(2020 - £840) relating to hire of the workhouse pitches. The debtor balance outstanding at the year end amounted 
to £420 (2020 - £175). There were no creditor balances at the year end (2020 NIL).  

Association of Colleges – a company in which Gerry McDonald is a board member 

Purchase transactions in the year amounted to £75,072 (2020 - £49,262) relating to the College’s annual 
subscription, conference fees and interim management recruitment. The balance outstanding at the year end 
amounted to £4,242 (2020 NIL). 

Greater London Authority (GLA) contains the Skills for Londoners Board – and Gerry McDonald is a member of the 
board. 

Sales transactions in the year amounted to £17,342,466 (2020 - £16,330,487) relating to Adult Education Budget 
funding. The debtor balance outstanding at the year end amounted to £100,000 (2020 - £100,000). There were no 
creditor balances at the year end (2020 NIL).  
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